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The property is designated Rural in the Township’s Official Plan and zoned Rural in the 

Township’s Zoning By-law #56-14. Surrounding properties are also designated and 

zoned Rural.  

The property is currently vacant with the owners proposing to build a single family 

dwelling and a garage. The property is irregular in shape with approximately 101.3 m 

frontage on Peggs Mountain Road and is approximately 1.44 hectares (3.57 acres) in 

size.  

Minor Variance Rationale: 

Section 45(1) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. P.13, as amended, sets out four tests for 

a minor variance that must be met for the consideration of its approval. 

• Is the general intent and purpose of the Official Plan maintained? 

In the Official Plan, the Rural designation promotes the preservation of rural 

character with the dominant consideration for an open and natural 

appearance of the countryside as a priority. A single detached dwelling is a 

permitted use in the Rural area and a garage is a permitted accessory building. 

The subject property exceeds the lot frontage and lot area provisions of the Rural 

designation. Design considerations are based on principles that maintain the 

rural character of the Township and include buildings be sited in relation to 

natural features rather than the road and setbacks be varied from surrounding 

development. 

The application conforms to the general intent and purpose of the Official Plan 

which does contain specific policies for accessory structure locations. 

• Is the general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law maintained? 

The subject property is zoned Rural which permits the development of a single 

detached dwelling and a garage as an accessory building.  The Zoning By-law 

requires that accessory buildings be situated in the side or rear yard to ensure a 

consistent approach to the placement of accessory structures and to maintain 

the rural residential character.   

The front yard setback for buildings in the Rural zone is 30 m where the applicant 

is suggesting a setback of approximately 97 m for the garage and approximately 

112 m for the detached dwelling. These setbacks far exceed the minimum 

required in the Rural zone which will facilitate maintaining the rural character of 

the area.  

The application meets the general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law. 

• Is the variance desirable for the appropriate development of use of the property? 

The proposed variance is desirable as it proposes to develop the garage at a 

setback of approximately 97 m from the road, where 30 m is required. This is over 

three times the required setback which keeps the intent of maintaining the Rural 
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designation to preserve the character of the natural countryside appearance as 

a priority.  

The request to build the garage in the front yard instead of a side or rear yard is 

due to the preferred siting the house on the property having better suited terrain 

closer to the rear lot line. 

Given the setback of the proposed garage, the requested variance is desirable 

and appropriate use of the property. 

• Is the variance minor? 

The proposed variance to allow the garage to be build in the front yard in the 

rural zone is a minor request and not expected to create any adverse impacts.  

The proposed location of the garage is well in excess of the required minimum 

front yard setback. The proposed development complies with all other 

development standards in the Zoning By-law. 

Recommendation: 

The proposed minor variance maintains the general intent and purpose of the 

Township’s Official Plan and Zoning By-law. The requested variance is considered a 

desirable use of the land and is minor in nature. The application represents good land 

use planning and meets the four tests required under Section 45(1) of the Planning Act. 

 

Sincerely, 

J.L. RICHARDS & ASSOCIATES LIMITED 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: 

 
 

Tara Michauville, MSc 

Planner 

Jason Ferrigan, RPP, MCIP, MScPl 

Principal Associate, Chief Planner 
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Attachment 1 - Sketch of proposed development 
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